

### **Property Investment Board**

Date: WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2016

Time: 1.45 pm

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

**Members:** Deputy Alastair Moss (Chairman) George Gillon

Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chairman) Deputy Brian Harris
Chris Boden Alderman Peter Hewitt

Mark Boleat Ann Holmes

Keith Bottomley Tony Joyce (Co-Opted Member)

David Brooks Wilson (Co-Opted Edward Lord Member) Edward Lord Dhruv Patel

Deputy Michael Cassidy Liz Peace (Co-Opted Member)
Deputy Roger Chadwick

**Enquiries: David Arnold** 

tel. no.: 020 7332 1174

david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in Guildhall Club at 1PM NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

#### **AGENDA**

#### Part 1 - Public Agenda

- 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
- 2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
- 3. MINUTES

To approve the public minutes and summary of the Property Investment Board meeting held on 15 June 2016.

For Decision (Pages 1 - 4)

4. **MUSEUM OF LONDON PROPOSED RELOCATION – APPROVAL IN PRINCIPLE** Report of the Town Clerk.

For Decision (Pages 5 - 12)

- 5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD
- 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
- 7. **EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC**

MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

**For Decision** 

#### Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

8. NON PUBLIC MINUTES

To approve the non-public minutes of the Property Investment Board meeting held on 15 June 2016.

For Decision (Pages 13 - 18)

9. **ECONOMIC AND PROPERTY MARKET** 

To receive a presentation from Cushman and Wakefield.

For Information

10. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS

Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information (Pages 19 - 20)

## 11. MUSEUM OF LONDON PROPOSED RELOCATION - APPROVAL IN PRINCIPLE (APPENDIX 2)

To consider the Non-Public Appendix to the report of the Town Clerk at Item 4.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 21 - 22)

#### 12. COMMUNITY SAFETY / MULTI AGENCY RESOURCE

Report of the Town Clerk.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 23 - 28)

#### 13. **REVENUE OUTTURN 2015/16**

Joint report of the Chamberlain and the City Surveyor.

**For Information** 

(Pages 29 - 36)

#### 14. COLLECTION OF RENT ARREARS

Joint report of the Chamberlain and the City Surveyor.

For Information

(Pages 37 - 42)

### 15. QUARTERLY DELEGATED AUTHORITIES UPDATE - 1 APRIL 2016 TO 30 JUNE 2016

Report of the City Surveyor.

For Information

(Pages 43 - 52)

## 16. CITY FUND, CITY'S ESTATE AND BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES - IPD ANNUAL PERFORMANCE MONITORING (TO FOLLOW)

Report of the City Surveyor.

For Information

#### 17. CITY OF LONDON WIRELESS CONCESSION

Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision

(Pages 53 - 56)

## 18. SMITHFIELD MARKET - TRANSPORT FOR LONDON LEASE TO CITY, SMITHFIELD PLANT ROOM (LINDSEY STREET)

Joint report of the City Surveyor and the Director of Markets and Consumer Protection.

For Information

(Pages 57 - 70)

#### **CITY FUND**

#### 19. RENT REVIEW AND LEASE VARIATION - FLEET STREET, EC4

Report of the City Surveyor.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 71 - 76)

## 20. SURRENDER AND RE-GRANT OF HEAD LEASE - CITY TOWER, BASINGHALL STREET, EC2

Report of the City Surveyor.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 77 - 82)

#### 21. RENT REVIEW - 10-12 LEADENHALL MARKET, EC3

Report of the City Surveyor.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 83 - 86)

22. **LEASE RENEWAL OF LOWER GROUND FLOOR - GARLICK HILL, EC4** Report of the City Surveyor.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 87 - 92)

#### CITY'S ESTATE

23. **GRANT OF A NEW LEASE - 220-224 TOTTENHAM COURT ROAD, W1** Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision

(Pages 93 - 96)

24. **GRANT OF A NEW LEASE - BLACKWELL HOUSE, GUILDHALL YARD, EC2** Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision

(Pages 97 - 102)

25. **RENT REVIEW - SOUTH CRESCENT / TOTTENHAM COURT ROAD, W1** Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision

(Pages 103 - 106)

#### **BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES**

26. **ISSUE REPORT - QUEEN VICTORIA STREET, EC4** Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision

(Pages 107 - 116)

27. **GRANT OF A NEW LEASE - QUEEN VICTORIA STREET, EC4** Report of the City Surveyor.

**For Decision** 

(Pages 117 - 122)

28. **DECISIONS TO BE SOUGHT UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY DURING SUMMER RECESS (TO FOLLOW)** 

Report of the City Surveyor.

For Decision

- 29. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD
- 30. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



#### **PROPERTY INVESTMENT BOARD**

#### Wednesday, 15 June 2016

## Minutes of the meeting of the Property Investment Board held at the Guildhall EC2 at 1.45 pm

#### Present

#### Members:

Deputy Alastair Moss (Chairman) Dhruv Patel

Keith Bottomley Tony Joyce (Co-Opted Member)

David Brooks Wilson (Co-Opted Member) Edward Lord

George Gillon Liz Peace (Co-Opted Member)

**Deputy Brian Harris** 

#### Officers:

Philippa Sewell - Town Clerk's Department
Sam Cook - Remembrancer's Department
John James - Chamberlain's Department

Alan Bennetts - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department

Peter Bennett - City Surveyor

Nicholas Gill

Andrew Cross

City Surveyor's Department

#### 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chairman), Chris Boden, Deputy Roger Chadwick, and Ann Holmes.

### 2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were none.

#### 3. MINUTES

**RESOLVED** – That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 25 May 2016 be approved.

#### 4. HOUSING AND PLANNING BILL

The Board received a report of the Remembrancer that advised Members of the enactment of the Housing and Planning Bill, which included four measures principally intended to encourage land held in the public sector to be made available for housing development.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

### 5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD There were none.

## 6. **ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT** There was none.

#### 7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

**RESOLVED** – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

<u>Item No.</u>	<u>Paragraph No.</u>
8 – 20	3

#### 8. NON PUBLIC MINUTES

**RESOLVED** – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 25 May 2016 be approved.

## 9. CITY FUND, CITY'S ESTATE, BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES AND STRATEGIC PROPERTY ESTATE - ANNUAL VALUATION

The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that informed Members of the results of the annual valuation of the City's Cash, Bridge House Estates, and City Fund Estates for the year ending 31 March 2016.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

#### 10. CITY'S RENTAL FORECASTS MONITORING REPORT

The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that provided the latest quarterly update of rental forecasts for City's Estate, Bridge House Estates, City Fund, and the Strategic Estate, as at 31 March 2016.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

#### 11. ARREARS OF RENT AS AT MARCH 2016 QUARTER DAY MINUS 1

The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that informed Members of the current position with regards to tenant arrears as at 24 March 2016.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

#### 12. CITY SURVEYOR'S DEPARTMENTAL RISK REPORT

The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that provided Members with an update on the management of risks within the City Surveyor's Department.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

### 13. CITY SURVEYOR'S BUSINESS PLAN 2015-18 QUARTER 4 PROGRESS REPORT

The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that detailed the progress made in Quarter 4 2015/16 against the 2015-18 business plan.

**RESOLVED** – That the report be noted.

### 14. GATEWAY 5 ISSUES REPORT: BARBICAN EXHIBITION HALL 1 - ENABLING WORKS

The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor seeking approval for enabling works to the Barbican Exhibition Hall 1.

#### 15. DISPOSAL OPTIONS - RABBITS BRIDGE ROAD PLOT

The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval for the disposal of the City Corporation's freehold interest in land known as the Rabbits Road Bridge Plot.

#### 16. LETTING REPORT - LEASE RENEWAL, WORSHIP STREET EC2

The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to a proposed lease renewal of a second floor on Worship Street, EC2.

#### 17. LAND AT VINE STREET, EC3 - PROTECTIVE ACTION

The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to take protective action with regards to land at Vine Street, EC3.

### 18. LETTING REPORT - GRANT OF A NEW LEASE, LONDON WALL BUILDINGS EC2

The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to a proposed new lease.

### 19. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

There was one non-public question.

# 20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was one item of other business.

The meeting closed at 2.50 pm	
Chairman	

**Contact Officer: Philippa Sewell** 

Tel. no.: 020 7332 1426

Philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Committee(s):	Date:
Policy and Resources Committee – For Decision Markets Committee – For Information Property Investment Board – For Information	07 July 2016 20 July 2016 20 July 2016
Subject: Museum of London Proposed Relocation – Approval in Principle	Public (with Non-Public Appendix)
Report of: Town Clerk	For Information
Report authors: Matthew Pitt, Town Clerk's Department	

#### Summary

This report seeks Members' approval in principle for the City of London Corporation to work with the Greater London Authority (GLA) to support the Museum of London's proposed move to Smithfield General Market and Annexe (West Smithfield).

Previous reports to this committee on 23 June 2015 and September 2015 (urgency) and the statement given by the Chairman to the Court of Common Council on 15 October 2015 advised Members that officers have been working with the Museum of London and GLA to investigate the Museum of London Board's preferred option for the siting of a new museum at West Smithfield.

This report updates Members on progress made to date on the Museum of London's proposed move to Smithfield General Market, Annexe and Poultry Market Basement. It outlines that more officer time and possibly financial commitment will be needed before a final decision can be made later this year but asks Members to provide their support in principle for the Museum's move. Such an agreement would make the City of London Corporation's intention clear and allow key stakeholders to express a view on the proposals to bring these historic market buildings back into public use. The report also notes the importance of stakeholder engagement and that the move would free up the Museum's existing London Wall site for a potential Centre for Music, significantly boosting the City's aspirations for a cultural hub.

It is important to note that whilst signaling the City of London Corporation's in principle support for the proposed move, there will be a number of practical considerations such as project governance, funding arrangements and due diligence which will need to be addressed ahead of any final commitment. The overall cost of the project is currently estimated to be £200-300m funded by the City, GLA and Museum.

#### Recommendations

That Policy and Resources Committee: -

a) Approve in principle the City of London Corporation supporting the Museum of London's proposed move, working with the GLA to bring new life and

- purpose to the underused buildings at Smithfield General Market, Annex and Poultry Market basement;
- b) note that any move by the Museum will require the approval of multiple committees and the Court of Common Council;
- c) note that full approval would have to be subject to satisfactory terms having been agreed between the City, GLA and Museum of London; satisfactory financial arrangements including cost envelope, affordability, capital and revenue funding shares; and satisfactory completion of due diligence including legal powers and governance proposals; and
- d) note that a decision in principle at this stage would not predetermine a final decision later in the year which will be taken once the above considerations have been addressed.

#### **Main Report**

#### Background

- 1. In July 2015 the Court of Common Council approved the City's purchase of TH Real Estate's Leasehold interests in Smithfield General Market and Annexe. The purchase was completed in December 2015, allowing the City and Museum of London to explore the Museum's preferred option to relocate to West Smithfield or for the site to be used for another purpose. While the possible Museum of London relocation was an important incentive for the purchase, it was acknowledged that the purchase stood on its own merit even if the relocation did not proceed due to the importance of the site and its key location. Members were advised at the time that an alternative option for the site could be a stand-alone retail development.
- In his statement to Members at the 25 October 2015 meeting of the Court of Common Council, the Chairman of your committee set out the context to this purchase, including how the proposed move is linked with a possible new Centre for Music at the Museum's current site: -

"As Members will be aware, the Museum of London has the ambition to create a new Museum at West Smithfield. This is not a "nice to have" project. The present building is wholly unsatisfactory and if the Museum remains there will require expensive repair and renovation work at a cost that could well exceed that of moving to a new building. At the same time the Treasury and the Mayor of London provided funding to the Barbican and the LSO for a feasibility study for a new Centre for Music in London. This study has now been completed and has concluded that it is indeed feasible for such a centre to be located on the present Museum of London site at London Wall. These two developments, occurring together, provide a unique opportunity that should be pursued.

The proposed new Museum of London at West Smithfield, located as it will be next to a new Crossrail and Thameslink station, would be a state-of-the-art institution to meet the needs of Londoners and visitors to the capital. Set in the complex of buildings at West Smithfield, including the iconic General Market and Red House, it would not only be a new landmark destination but also a space in which a 21<sup>st</sup> century museum can bring heritage and history to life for new generations. The new museum will create an unrivalled experience and contribute to the regeneration of

this vibrant and historic part of London. The new museum at West Smithfield would welcome over two million people each year, connect with all parts of London, work with even more schools and display more of the museum's collection, much of which is currently in storage. It will be a more financially sustainable organisation that brings the latest academic thinking to the fore.

The freeing of the present Museum site makes possible the construction of a new Centre for Music on London Wall - a home for the London Symphony Orchestra, an inspiring place in which the LSO can flourish under the direction of Sir Simon Rattle, when he becomes their musical director in 2017. The Centre for Music would not only provide a space for superb performance, but would also promote learning, education and discovery for all."

- 3. Subsequently at the Policy and Resources Committee meeting on 19 November 2015, Members agreed in principle to support the development of a new Centre for Music on the Museum of London's current site subject to confirmation of funding partners, final agreement of capital costs and sustainable long-term revenue costs.
- In July 2015 the Museum of London applied for and was granted a Certificate
  of Immunity from Listing by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and
  Sport on its current London Wall site. The current certificate is valid until July
  2020.

#### **Current Position**

- 5. In January this year, the Museum announced their architectural competition to design a new museum at Smithfield General Market and Annexe. The competition has since progressed with six shortlisted architects (announced 4 April 2016). Their initial design ideas have been on public display at the Museum of London since 10 June ahead of a decision on the winner due to be taken by the Museum's Board on 13 July. The Museum is currently engaging stakeholders.
- 6. Concurrently, the Museum, with funding provided by the City, has been developing its business case for the move and conducting a technical study to explore any enabling works that could be conducted sooner to accelerate the overall building programme.
- 7. To date, the ongoing costs of the project (excluding purchase of the West Smithfield Site) have been shared between the City, GLA and Museum. The City and the GLA have committed £417,000 each towards the costs of the project excluding funds for the purchase of the Smithfield site and the Museum has spent £300,000 on items including an options appraisal study. The City has also set aside £25,000 to cover its own legal and regulatory matters. It has been acknowledged that while these funds have been expended "at risk" in that the relocation may not proceed, it is nevertheless inevitable that some early preparatory and feasibility work has had to be undertaken in order to progress the project to its current stage. The overall cost for the project is yet to be determined but it is currently estimated that this will be £200-300m.

- 8. There remain a number of key issues which require more officer time in order to resolve ahead of a final decision. These issues include: -
  - agreement between the City, GLA and Museum to Heads of Terms including in relation to funding shares for both the capital costs and subsequent revenue implications;
  - The project timetable (particularly around the dependency of the proposed C4M on vacation of the Museum's current site)
  - Funding agreement between the three parties
  - Review of the business case
  - Overall budget envelope;
  - Affordability in the context of other corporate priorities and the City Corporation's financial position at the time a final decision is required; and
  - Governance Structures.
- 9. It is expected that much of the above can be achieved through additional officer time alone but some additional financial resource may be required in order to reach a satisfactory position ahead of a final decision. Subject to resolving the above issues, the anticipated timeline of that report is set out in the table below:

Committee	Date (2016)
Policy & Resources Committee	08 September or 6 October
Property Investment Board	14 September
Markets Committee	21 September
Resource Allocation sub-Committee	6 October
Court of Common Council	13 October / 8 Dec

- 10. The General Market Buildings and Annexe have been largely unused for market purposes since around 1997 (following the extensive modernisation and consolidation of the meat market facilities). Much of this area has since endured a difficult history, further complicated by requirements to carry out works to the railway tunnel beneath part of the site for which the City is responsible, and Crossrail's requirements to use parts of the site. The background includes two failed attempts by two successive development companies to redevelop the site into an office-led mixed use development culminating in the planning decisions being called in by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government. These redevelopment efforts were significantly opposed by local and national pressure groups including SAVE, and the planning applications were refused.
- 11. The Poultry Market basement has been unused for Market purposes for a longer period, having been leased, in conjunction with a section of the Annexe, to a cold storage company since the 1930s and more recently to a document storage company from 1982 to 2009. Thereafter it has remained vacant.
- 12. Given the difficult history of the site, the Museum have begun their own dialogue with key stakeholders. The Museum have advised that initial

indications from groups such as the Smithfield Market Tennant's Association (SMTA), The Victorian Society and SAVE have been that they would support the preservation and conservation of the market buildings for a museum use. The positive indications from these organisations are significant given the level of previous opposition. If the buildings could be redeveloped for museum use then it would be a significant boost for the Smithfield Conversation Area, bringing these heritage assets back into public use.

13. The City of London Corporation has also, as a courtesy, written to bodies with previous interests in the site (SAVE, the Victorian Society and SMTA) about this report advising that any comments should be provided within 14 days for inclusion in the report. The Victorian Society's response is attached at Appendix 1. No comments have been received in response to that letter from SAVE or SMTA. A letter was however received on behalf of the SMTA in September 2015 and a copy of the letter is attached in a non-public appendix. While planning policy is to support the continued presence of Smithfield Market, the expansion of the market facility is not adopted policy, and would not realise the fullest potential and intensification opportunities offered by the new key Crossrail transport interchange at Farringdon.

#### **Proposal**

- 14. It is proposed that Members give their in principle approval to supporting the Museum of London's proposed move and to working with the GLA in supporting the Museum of London's ambition to bring new life and purpose to the underused buildings at Smithfield General Market, Annex and Poultry Market basement.
- 15. It should be noted that the proposal within this report does not predetermine the final decision which Members will be asked to consider before the proposed relocation could take place. This decision will need to be informed by a report which addresses many of the practical considerations surrounding the project such as the Heads of Terms, project governance, overall capital cost, funding agreements, due diligence and analysis of the Museum's long-term business model.

#### Strategic Implications

- 16. The proposal for the Museum of London to move to West Smithfield would be a significant step towards revitalising this corner of the Square Mile. The disused market buildings form a key part of the Smithfield Conservation Area; bringing them back to public use is likely to be welcomed by a range of stakeholders. In addition, the arrival of Crossrail (Elizabeth Line) will provide a further boost bringing an estimated 1.5m passengers within a 45min journey of the City. When it opens in December 2018, Farringdon will become one of the most accessible transport hubs in London with direct links to three of London's international airports. The London Borough of Islington are also proposing a Farringdon and Clerkenwell BID just north of the City border where a vibrant community of design focused SMEs are based.
- 17. The Museum's proposed move would free up its current London Wall site for the potential Centre for Music. Collectively these two landmark projects could

make a significant contribution to the promotion of excellence, collaboration and inclusivity in the City's cultural offer, enhance London's arts, heritage and cultural experience, help increase the attractiveness of the City as a place to be, and increase the outreach and impact of the City's cultural, heritage and leisure contribution to the life of London and the nation.

18. These aspirations reflect the policies and priorities which have been adopted by the City in a range of strategy documents including the Corporate Plan 2015-19 (e.g. Key Policy Priority 5), the Cultural Strategy 2012 – 2017 (eg page 5), the Core Strategy (e.g. CS 11) and the Smithfield Conservation Area SPD 2012.

#### Conclusion

19. Following the purchase of the leasehold interests at Smithfield General Market and Annexe, work by the Museum to pursue their proposed move, jointly funded by the GLA and City of London Corporation, has accelerated. Policy and Resources Committee is asked to consider the recommendations in this report given the momentum of the project, in order to provide a steer in advance of further resources being committed to the initiative. This report sets out progress to date and paves the way for detailed funding and governance arrangements to be progressed in the coming months. The final decision on whether the project will go ahead will be subject to report expected later this year and is not predetermined by any in principle decision taken at this stage. It is therefore recommended that Members approve the recommendations set out in this report.

#### **Appendices**

- Appendix 1 Response from The Victorian Society
- Appendix 2 Letter to City of London Corportation from Kidd Rapinet LLP on behalf of SMTA (Non-Public)

#### **Background Papers**

- Cultural Strategy 2012-2017
- Corporate Plan 2015 2019
- Core strategy (adopted 2015)
- Smithfield Conservation Area SPD (adopted 2012)

#### **Matthew Pitt**

Town Clerk's Department

T: 020 7332 1425

E: matthew.pitt@cityoflondon.gov.uk

#### Pitt, Matthew

From: Christopher Costelloe (The Victorian Society)

**Sent:** 29 June 2016 18:03 **To:** Pitt, Matthew

**Subject:** RE: Museum of London proposed move to West Smithfield

Dear Mr Pitt,

Many thanks for your letter. The Victorian Society is supportive in principle of the Museum of London's proposed move to the Smithfield General Market site. While the design process is still at an early stage, the initial shortlisted concept designs demonstrate that it should be possible to accommodate the Museum without damaging the historic and architectural interest of the buildings and the Smithfield Conservation Area.

I would like to take this opportunity to compliment the City of London on its response to the outcome of the public inquiry over the previous scheme on this site; it has been constructive, pragmatic and strategic, in the best traditions of the City.

Kind regards,

Christopher Costelloe Director

**The Victorian Society** 

1 Priory Gardens London W4 1TT

The Victorian Society is the national charity campaigning for the Victorian and Edwardian historic environment. Registered Charity No. 1081435. Company limited by guarantee. Registered in England No. 3940996. Registered office as above. This email (and any attachments) is intended solely for the individual(s) to whom addressed. It may contain confidential and/or legally privileged information. Any statement or opinions therein are not necessarily those of The Victorian Society unless specifically stated. Any unauthorised use, disclosure or copying is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. Security and reliability of the e-mail and attachments are not guaranteed. You must take full responsibility for virus checking.



From: Pitt, Matthew Sent: 15 June 2016 13:03

**To:** Christopher Costelloe (The Victorian Society) **Cc:** Richard Seedhouse (The Victorian Society)

Subject: Museum of London proposed move to West Smithfield

**Importance:** High

Dear Mr Costelloe,

Please find attached a covering letter seeking the views of you and your organisation, The Victorian Society, on the attached draft report. The report will be considered by the City of London Corporation's Policy and Resources Committee on 7 July 2016.

Kind regards,

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

